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l. Acronyms and Glossery of Terms

Appropriations in Aid

Bottom Up Economic Transformation Agenda

Bomas International Convention Centre

Bomas of Kenya

C ertifi ed Pub lic A c c ountant

Cabinet Secretary .

Financial Year

General Elections

Interdattonal Accounting Standards

Industrial and Commercial Development Corporation

Information Communication and Technologt

Independent Electoral and Boundaies Commission

Interaational Financial Reporting Standards

Internalional Standards Organisation

Ke ny a D ev e I op men t C o rp o ratio n

Kenya Shillings

Limiled Liab i lity P artners h ip

National Health Insurance Fund

National Social Security Fund

Pay As You Earn

Public Finance Management

Quality Management Sys tem

United Natiorc High Commissioner for Refugees

Value Added Tax

AIA

BETA

BICC

BOX

CPA

cs
FY

GE

us
ICDC

ICT

IEBC

IFN,S

ISO

KDC

KSH

LLP

NHIF

NS.SF

PAYE

PFM

QMS

ANECR

VAT

llt
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Annual Report and Finenclsl Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

2, Key Endty Informetlon

a) Beckground lnformefion

Bomas of Kenya Limilsd was established, under the Kenya Companies Acts Cap 486 of the laws of
Kenya" on 116 September 1970. At cabinet level, the Cabinet Secretary, Minist-y of Tourism and

Wildlife represents the entity and, are responsible for the entity's general policy and strategic

direction. Bomas of Kenya Limited is domiciled in Kenya.

b) PrincipalActivities

The principal activity of Bomas of Kenya Limited is to preserve, promote, and maintain the diverse

cultures of Kenya for tourism development.

Our Mission

To preserve, maintain, educate and promote the diverse culhres of various ethnic groups in

Kenya

Our Vision

To be the leading custodian ofKenya's diverse cultures as a trational heritage for prosperity

and posterity.

Our Core Values

Professionalism and Authenticity
Customer Orientation
Result Driven

Humility and Respect for Other People

Tearn Spirit among staff
Corporate Citizenship and Social Responsibility
Transparency and Accountability
Efficiency
Creativity and Innovativeness

lv
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c) Directors

The Directors who served the entity during the year were as flollows:

d) Registered OIfice

Bomas of Kenya Ltd
Langata Highway / Forest Edge Road

P.O. Box 40689 - 00100

Nairobi, Kenya.

e) CorporateHeadquarters

Bomas of Kenya Ltd
P.O. Box 40689 - 00100
Langata Highway / Forest Edge Road
Nairobi, Kenya

f) Corporate Contacts

Telephone: (254)-20-889 I 80 I 12, 88907 93 / 5 I 8

Fax: (254)-20-310223
E-mail : info@bomasofkenya.co.ke.
Website : www.bomasofl<enya.co.ke

g) Corporate Bankers

Kenya Commercial Bank
Moi Avenue Branch
P.O. Box 30081-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

l. Hon. JaneJ. K. Chebaibai - Chairperson -Appointed on 106 February 2023

2. Ms. Khadija M. Awale - Chairperson - Retired on 106 February 2023

3. CPA Nixon Mugilwa -AG. GlWChief Executive

Offrcer

- Appointed on November 2023

4. Mr. Peter Gitaa Koria -GIWChief Executive Offi cer - Appointed on 2l"rFebruary 2021

5. Ms. Ummi M. Bashir - PS- State Department of

Culture and Heritage

- Appointed on 3d December 2022

6. Mr. Christopher G. Huka Rep - Director General, KDC - Appointed in July 2021

7. Mr. Paul J. Oyier - Rep - Cabinet Secretary, The

National Treasury

- Appointed on 24s November

202t
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Bomu of Kenyr Llnltd
Alnurl Rcport rnd Ftnrndrl Stltcmcntr for the y.lr ended June 3e 202it

h) Indcpcndcnt Audlton

Artditor-Gcocral
Tb OEce of the Audiror Gaoral
Arhivcrsary Towcrs, Uaivclsity Way
P.O. Box 30084
cPb ool0o
Nailobi lknya

I) Hnclprl Lcgd Advl$rs

l. Thc Attomcy Gorcral
State I.w Officc and DcpartueNrt of Justice
llarambcc Avaruc
P.O. Box 40112
City Squarc 00200
Nairobi, IGnya

2. ShaAlsy B8ne{ & Company Advocatcs
hudcatial Assuancc Building,
2d Ploor - Wabcra Stect
P.O. Box 4O286-00100
Nairobi, Kcoya
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3. The Borrd of Dlrectors

I

IIon. Janc Jepkorlr Kiptoo
Chebribci
Chdrpenon - Appohted on
l0tt Februery 2023

Hon. Jane Chebaibai was appointed the

chairyerson of the Board of Directors of Bomas

of Kenya on 10th February 2023. She holds a

Bachelor's Degree in Co,nselling Psychology
from African International University, a field that

highlights her undentanding of human behaviour

and social dynamics.

Prior to her appointrrent as the Chairperson ofthe
board, Hon. Jane Jepkorir served as the Women

County Member of the National Assembly of
Elgeyo Marakwet, a position she held for five
yean (2017 ta 2022). During her tenure, she

contributed to the governance ofher constituency
and the nation as a whole. This legislative

experience equipped her with an understanding

of governance and policy-making, which has

bcen valuable in her role as the chairperson ofthe
Board of Directors of Bomas of Kenya.

2.

Khad{a M. Awele,
Chalrpenon - Retired on 10th
Februgry 2023

I
I

Mrs. Khadija joined the board of Bomas of Kenya

as the Chairperson on 28s April 2022. She

previously served as the chairperson of the Jomo

Kenyatla Foundation and she had also served as

a director at Bomas of Kenya between 2015 to
2018. She has vast knowledge and expertise in
business management for over 25 years in both

the public and private sectors having served in
several positions in the said sectors. Mrs. Khadija
retired from the board on lOth Febnwy 2023 .

vll
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3

CPA. Niron Mugilwa
Actlng General Manager/Chief
Erecutive O{Iicer - Appointed
on 23rd November 2023

CPA Mugitwa is currently serving as thc Acting Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) at Bomas of Kenya. Prior to his
appointnent as the Acting CEO, CPA Mugilwa serued as
the Finance Manager, and previously as the Chief
Accountatrt. His elevation to the role of Acti[g CEO is a
testament of his competence, leadership acumen, ard the
impact he has made in his previous roles within the
organization. He is a seasoned senior managoment
professional with sbong expertise and experience in
finance, auditing, taxation, financial advisory and
corporate govemance among other associated matters.
With over l0 years ofextensive experience in financc and
accounting, he has successfully navigated roles in bo0r the
public sector, and the privale sector.

CPA Mugilwa is a Certified Public Accountant of Kcnya
(CPA-K) and a member of the Institute Certified Public
Accountant of Kenya. He is currently a PbD candidate in
Business Administration (Finance) at the University of
Nairobi. He holds Masters of Science (MSc.) in Finance
and Investment from the University of Nairobi and a
Bachelor of Commerce (Finance).

Mr. Peter Gitaa Koria (41)
Generel Manager/Chief
Executive Ollicer
- Served up to 16rb November
2023

Mr. Gitaa is an innovative, purpose{riven, and resrlts-
oriented manager with over 16 years of leadership and
service in various organizations and institutions,
particularly within the hospitality, tourism, and education
secto6. He is the Chief Executive Officer and has served
previously as the Hospitality Manager at the Kenya lJtalii
College, Banqueting/Events Manager at the Kenya lrtalii
College and as Deputy Geaeral Manager at Utalii Hotel
and at the Alliance Naro Moru River Lodge. He also
served as the Marketing Executive at the Conqueror Tours
and Safaris.

He is a holder of a Master of Ars Degree in Diplomacy
and Foreign Policy from Moi University, a Bachelor's
Degree in Commerce from Kenyatta University and a
four-year Diploma in Hotel Management from the Kenya
Utalii College. He is curently pursuing a Masters of Arts
Degree in Business Administration at the United States
Intemational University Africa. Mr. Gitaa has also
benefited from various professional tr.ainings and short
courses, including in Education Network in Sustainable
Tourism @ologna University), Tourism Resources
Planning and Development (Heilongjiang university),
Corporate Govemance Training for Directors rnd
Strategic Leadership (Maseno University), and Customer
Service Management, among others. He is an Alumni of
Riomego Secondary School.

vlll
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5

Ummi Mohammed B$hir
Prlnclpel Secretery
Stste Deprrtment for Culture
and lleritage

PS. Umrni Mohammed Bashir was appointed the Principal
Secretary of State Departrnent for Culture and Heritage
under the Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife on 3d
December 2022. Previously she served as the vice
chairperson of the national elections board of United
Democratic Alliance Party's and resigned on October
2022. Prior to that, she worked with United Nations Higb
Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR) in the
Comprehensive Refugee Response Framework (CRRP)
program and UNDP as the executive advisor to the country
director fiom Decemb€r 20 I 2 to October 20 I 3 . PS Bashir,
is an Advocste of the High Court of Kcnya with over l0
years' experience post admission, a Corrmissioner for
Oaths and Notary Public. and a member of, Law Society
of Kenya ald the East Africa Law Society. Her areas of
practice include corporate govemance, public law,
constihrtional law, election p€titions, corffnercial
transactions and commercial Litigatiog intellectual
property. PS Bashir is currently pursuing a PhD in
Intemational Relations and Forcign Policy at USru. Holds
a Master's of Arts in Armed Conflict and Peace Shrdies
from Zanzibar Univenity (2018) and a Bachelor of Law
and Shariatr (2009).

6.

Chrirtopher Guyo Huke (56)

Rep- Interim Director General,
Kenya Development
Corporation

Mr. Huka was appointed member of the Board of
Directors of Bomas of Kenya Limited in July
2021, x a representative of the Kenya

Development Corporation (KDC). He is the

Interim Director General mandated to manage the

merger and fransition of TFC, IDB Capital and

ICDC into a single DFI entity. He has over 25

years in the Private Sector specifically - Oil &
Gas sector, banking sector and public sector.

Mr. Huka holds a Master's Degree in Human
Resources Management from University of
Nairobi, Bachelor of Education from Moi
University, Diploma in Executive Coaching;
Academy of Executive Coaching - UK, Higher
National Diploma: HRM from Institute of
Human Resource Management.
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1

Mr. Paul J. Oyier
Rep - Cabinet Secretary, The
Netional Treesury

Mr. Oler joined the board of Bomas of Kenya as

a representative of the Cabinet Secretary, The
National Treasury on 246 November 2021. He is
a corporate strategy, public relafions, media and
ssmm''niglllons practitioners with over 20 yoars'
experience in both the private and public sector
in Kenya and the region.

He is cunently, the Senior Communications
Advisor to Kenya's Cabinet Secretary for The
National Treasury & Planning, advising and
supporting the minister to communicate the
economic agen& clearly and in a compelling
manner, while building and protecting the brand
and reputation of the ministry. He holds a

Bachelor of Arts degree in Joumalism witb a

minor in Public Relations, from the United States
International University - Africa, where he is set
to soon graduate with a Master of Arts in
Communication Studies, specializing in Strategic
Public Relations.

x
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4. Manegement Team

1

CPA Nhon Mugltwr (41)
Actlng Generrl
Maneger/Chlef Erecutlve
Officer - Appointed on 23d
November 2023

I

I

CPA Mugilwa is cunently serving as the Acting Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) at Bomas of Kenya. Prior to his
appointment as the Acting CEO, CPA Mugilwa served as the
Finance Manager, and previously as the Chief Accountant.
He is a seasoned senior management professional with strong
expertise aad experience in finance, auditing, taxation,
financial advisory and corporate govemance among other
associated matters. Witb over l0 years of extensive
experience in finance and accounting, he has successfirlly
navigated roles in both the public sector, and the private
sector.

CPA Mugilwa is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA-K) and
a member of the Institute Certifid Public Accountant of
Kenya. He is cr:rrently a PhD candidate in Business
Adminisn"ation (Finance) at the University of Nairobi. He
holds Masters of Science (MSc.) in Finance and Investu€,[t
from the Univenity of Nairobi and a Bachelor of Commerce
(Finance). His elevation to the role of Acting CEO is a

testament of his competence, leadership acumen, and the
impact he has made in his previous roles within the
orgsnization.

,

Mr, Peter Korla Gltee (41)
Generel Maneger/Chief
Erecutive Olficer

Mr. Gitaa is an innovative, purpose-driven, atrd results-oriented
manager with ovcr l5 years of leadership and seryice in various
organizrtiotrs and institutions, particularly wirl'in the hospitality,
tourism, and education sectors. He has notably served as the
Hospitality Manager at the Kenya Utalii College,
Banqueting/Events Msnager at the Kenya Utalii College and as

Deputy General Manager at Utalii Hotel and at the Alliance Naro
Moru River Lodge. He also served as the Marketing Executive at
the Conqueror Tours and Safaris.

Hc is a holder of a Master of Arts Degree in Dplomacy and Forcign
Policy from Moi University, a Bachelor's Degee in Commerce
from Kcoyana Univcrsity and a four-year Diploma in Hotel
Management from the Kcnya Utalii College. Mr. Gitaa has also
bcnefited from various professional rainings and short courses,
iaslgding in Education Network in Sustainable Tourism (Bologna

Univcrsity), Tourism Resources Planning and Dcvelopment
(Heilon$iang university), Corporate Governance Training for
Directors and Sfatcgic Leirdership (Mascno University), and

Customer Service Managem€nt, among others. He is an Alumni of
Riomcgo Secondary School.

xl
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3

Mr. Jimmy Okidiang'i (42)
Human Resource Manager

Mr. Okidiang'i has over 15 years' expcrience in
Management of Human Capital. He holds a Master of
Science in Human Resource Management, Bachelor of
Business Administration specialising in Humao Resource
Management, has a Higher National Diploma in Human
Resource Management and a Diploma in Personnel
Management. He is a Certified Lead Auditor and the
Corporation's Management representative on Quality
Management System and possesses other q'ralifications.
He is the Head, Human Resource Deparhnent.

4.

Dr. Kehithe Kiiru (3E)
Production Manager

Dr. Kahithe Kiiru is the head of Production Departnent. She
is an anthropologist, choreographer, producer and dance
educator. She has a PhD in anthropology from the University
of Paris X Nantere (France) and master's degree MPhil) in
Ethnomusicology and Dance Anthropology from the same
university.
Since 2017, she has been the Head Choreographer at Bomas
of Kenya, and was, in 2020, promoted to Ag. hoduction
Manager. Dr. Kiiru's duties include choreography and artistic
direction, culhrral research and fieldwork malagement,
audio-visual production and coordination of all theatre
activities. She is a skilled researcher with extensive
experience in ethnomrsicological research in East A&ica and
a special focus on dance traditions of Kenya. She has
published numerous articles and, in 2018, co-edited the book
"Music and Dance in Eastern Africa", a joint pubtication by
Twaweza Communications and the French Institute for
Research in East Africa (IFRA-Nairobi). She is a member of
the Kenya National Commission for LINESCO (KNATCOM)
Cultue Progmmme Expert Committee and sits on the
Advisory Board ofJAHAZI journal for the Culture, Arts and
Performance.

5.

Mr. Joseph W' Njoroge (44)
Pro Mrna

Mr. Njoroge joined Bomas of Kenya in December 2006
and has over 14 years' experience in Property
Management and Construction. He holds Diploma in
Building Technology and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Quantity Surveying from Technical University ofKenya.
He is the technical advisor of the Sample Bar Cultural
Music Digitization Project. He is the head of the hoperty
Deparnnent at Bomas of Kenya Limited.

xlt
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Mr. Jason Oblno (45)
Food and Beverage Menager

Mr. Obino is a seasoned professional with over 15 years
of experience in the hospitality sector. He joined Bomas
of Kenya from the Kenya Utalii College and he thrives
in food and beverage management and effectively
manages all operations in food and beverage departrnent.
He holds a Bachelors in Hotel and Hospitality
Management from Moi University, an advanced diploma
in Food and Beverage and Hotel management from
Utalii College and a diploma in instructors course from
Kenya Technical Training College.

7

Mr. Alphonce Akondo (40)
Ag. Senior Public Relations &
Communlcrtions olllcer

Mr. Akondo joined Bomas of Kenya in 2004 and is the
current head of the Public Relations and Communication
Unit. Before his appointment as the acting Senior Public
Relations and Communications Oflicer, he served as a
Corporate Communication Offrcer I. Mr. Akondo holds
a Bachelor of Science in Communication and Public
Relations, a Diploma in Film/Video programmes
production and a Diploma in TV Video Production. He
has over 15 years of experience fostering positive
relationships, promotional campaigns, media addresses,

crisis management and reports to executive management.

8.

Ms. Gledys K-rngethe (4t)
Ag. Merketing and Corporate
Communication Manager

Ms. Gladys Kangethe is the Head of marketing departrnent.

She holds an MBA in strategic management from Catholic

University of Eastem Africa. Possess a Bachelor's Degree

in Education from Moi University. A member of Marketing

Society of Kenya, Associate of Chartered Institute of
Marketing tlK (ACIM), Kenya Association of Women in
Tourism and Women on Boards Kenya.

Having been a senior marketing officer since 2019 Glads
was promoted to Head the marketing departrnent in 2020.

Her main duties are leading in the planning and

implementation of marketing strategies to increase the

market share ofBomas ofKenya in the cultural tourism and

conferencing sectors. Creating partrrerships that lead to
muhral benefit for Bomas to be able to realize its mandate.

Market intelligence which allows for the development of
new products and services as well as modification of
existing ones for the different target markets.

xul
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5. Chairperson'sStatement

A. Introduction

The Board of Bomas of Kenya is pleased to share our Amual Reports and Financial Statements for

the year ended 30th June 2023. The financial year commenced during a challenging time during the

hotly contested 2022 National general elections, succession and regime change as well the COVID-

19 pandemic which had adversely affected the Tourism industry, economies, households and

businesses. However, the year has been a marked by achievements, resilience, and a steadfast

commitment to the Bomas of Kenya strategic plan. I and fellow board members worked with

management to ensue attainment of the organisation's mandate.

At Bomas of Kenya, we stood at the forefront of fostering economic growth and gowth of the

Kenyan tourism sector. we remain committed to the principles of the Bottom-up Economy

Transformation (BETA) agenda to dnve the institution determination to uplift local artisans,

performers, and entreprenews. Bomas of Kenya recognizes the fundamental role it can play in
advancing the Bottom-Up Economy Transformation (BETA), a key priority of our nation. our
interactions with local artisans, performers, and entrepreneurs have further improved as we seek to

integrate their talents into our operations. Through partnerships and platforms, we have showcased

local products, talent, and businesses, driving economic growth from the ordinary level upwards.

During the financial year, our obligation to preserving and promoting our cultural heritage remained

unwavering, allowing us to achieve commendable financial results:

B. Financial Results

The 202212023 financial results stand as a testament to the strategic competence of Bomas of
Kenya. I am pleased to announce that Bomas ofKenya achieved a substantial increase in reveaue

which is mainly attributed to the selection of the Institution as the National Tallying Centre for the

2022 general elections. one of the key factors driving our financial performance has been the

diversification of our revenue streams. By increasing our line-up of cultural events, hosting &nd

entertainment offerings, we not only attracted a diverse audience but also fortified our income

generation abilities. This strategic approach wrll ensure long-term financial sustainability of the

institution.

xtv
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C. Governance Overslght

The board underwent some changes during the year. Several directors including Ms. Gloria

Nasimiyu, Ms Habiba Mohammed, Mr. Samson Ojiayo and Mr. Wycliffe Khavuchi retired. Ms.

Khadija Awale who served as the entity's Chairperson retired on lOth February 2023. In December

2022,wewere pleased to welcome to the Board Ms. Ummi Bashir, following her appointment as

the principal secretary, State Departnent for Culture and Heritage. The board sincerely appreciates

their selfless and dedicated service to the Board where it benefitted from their vast experience in

govemance, management, finance and strategy formulation.

D. Future Outlook

As we embark on the new financial year, Bomas ofKenya looks ahead with unwavering dedication

to excellence, innqvation, and the advancement of the bottom-up economy. We are dedicated to

enhancing visitor experiences by investing in modem facilities, innovative technology, and cultural

exhibitions. Bomas of Kenya intends to actualise the Bomas International Convention Complex

(BICC), a MICE project in the finan cial years 2023124 to 2024125 which aims at enhancing business

tourism, bring together top professionals fiom different sectors across the world in an enhanced and

tailor-made hospitality setting. Our cornmitment to preserving and promoting Kenyan rich diverse

culhue remains firm even in the nexl financial year.

E. Apprecietion

On behalf of the board, I would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation to the

management and staff for their persistent efforts in rallying together to deliver not only on the

promise oftoday but position Bomas ofKenya for a better tomorrow. To our shareholders, business

partners, customers and other stakeholders, thank you for trusting us to deliver to you every day of

our existence. I am especially grateful to the leadership of the Ministry of Tourism, Wildlife and

Heritage and the Govemment of Kenya as a whole for their support. I also thank our former

chairperson, Ms. Khadija Awale from whom I took over to serve the organisation. Together, we

have created a path of sustainable growth, cultural preservation, and economic vitality.

HON. JAIIE JEPKORIR KIPTOO CHEBAIBAI
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARI)

xv
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6. Report ofthe Chief Executive Oflicer

A. Introduction

Bomas of Kenya limited continues to ensure that its mandate of preservrng, maintairung and

promotion of the diverse cultures of Kenya for tourism development remain in its cultural form.

The place of culture and heritage in Kenya's tourism is emphasized in the country's National

Tourism Blueprint 2030 (NTB2030) and forms part of the Bottom-Up Economy Transformation

(BETA) agenda hence the need for sustainability. The tourism sector is one of key pi ars for

sustainable economic growth in Kenya with a Gross Domestic product of approximately l2%.

Therefore, the institution continues to ensure that its mandate of preserving, maintaining and

promotion ofthe diverse cultures ofKenya for tourism development remain in its cultural form.

The financial year 2022123 has been a period of exceptional significance for Bomas of Kenya,

characterized not only by outstanding performance but also by a landmark event that showcased

our organization's innovation, and strategy execution. This achievement involved the successful

hosting of the August 2022 general elections (GE), which stands as a prime example of our

commitment to innovation and excellence. ln partnership with the Ildependent Electoral and

Boundaries Commission (IEBC) and other relevant authorities, we transformed our facilities into a

secure and efficient centre for national tallying, a process that was commended both locally and

internationally. our organization's strategic alignment with this significant event reamrms our

commitment to national progress and democratic values.

B. Financial Results

During the financial year that ended 30th June 2023, the institution realized Kshs. 579 Million
intemally generated revenues ard received Kshs. 239.2 Million as current grant from the

Govemment. The growth in intemally generated revenues can be attributed to the institution

adoption of its strategies, innovation and team commitment. The organisation also received the

second tranche of Ksh. 7.04 Million from for the HEVA Fund for the Sample Bar project which is

being undertaken in partnership with Libido Music (Sweden) whose aim is to digitize and presewe

traditional African music for future generations. This digital technology project upon completion is

expected to change the way we envision the documentation and preservation of traditional music

on the continent.

xvl
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C. Employee Retention and Motivation

As we reflect on our joumey though the financial 2022123, I am inspired by the dedication,

resilience and hard work that each of my 189 colleagues and the temporary staff brought to the

organization. Our shared commitment to preserving and promoting Kenyan culture has been the

driving force behind our successes. Therefore, as we celebrate our financial accomplishments, it is

essential to recognize that these achievements are made possible by the collective efforts of every

team member. During the year, with the approval of the board we were able to setup and

operationalize the Bomas of Kenya Service Charge scheme payable to the Food and Beverage

Department Staff. The institution is also in the process of formulating other motivation schemes to

cover the entire worKorce. However, in the financial year, Ms. Teresia Abwana, Mr. Charles

Wachira and Mr. Daniel Muthee retired from the organisation after serving for several years. It is

very unfortunate that during the financial year we lost Mr. Edwin Muchera from the Property

department.

D. Strategic Alignment rnd Future Prospects

As we look towards the future, our strategies remain aligned with both national priorities and

industry trends. Collaboration with the Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife remains a foundation,

allowing us to align our cultural initialives with larger national objectives. The institution is also in

the process of developing the Strategic plan 2023-2021 to ensure the strategic objectives align to

the current strategic goals of the organization. We remain steadfast in our resolve to contribute to

the Bottom-Up Economy Transformation (BETA) agenda, supporting culnre, local talent and

artisans as they play a pivotal role in Kenya's economy. We remain committed in our commitment

to financial excellence, cultural preservation, and contributing positively to the nation's progress.

E. Appreciation

Finally, I extend my sincere appreciation to our devoted team members, visionary board members,

supportive partners, and all stakeholders who have contributed to our accomplishments. It is your

collecti e efforts that drive us forward and inspire us to reach new heights in the years to come

CP MUGILWA
AG. GENERAL MANAGERYCHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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7. Environmentsl and Sustainability Reporting

Bomas of Kenya Limited exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force behind

everything we do. It is what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the customer/Citizen first,

delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational excellence. Below is an outline

ofthe organisation's policies and activities that promote sustainability.

i). Sustainability Strategy and Profile -

Since its inception in 1971, Bomas of Kenya (BoK) has been showcasing the diversity of Kenya's

cultures, practices, and values. This vibrant portrayal of diversity has found expression through

various forms, supporting our core mandate. A notable stride in ourjourney is the proposed Bomas

Intemational convention centre (BICC), a collaborative endeavour through a public-private

partnership. This transformative project holds the promise of enhancing our revenue generation

capabilities, which, in tum, will cross-subsidize the preseryation and celebration ofKenya's diverse

cultwal heritage. The institution also runs the Utamaduni restauant that offers a rich menu of
exceptional cultural foods from different communities in Kenya and with every dish served, we

celebrate the culinary heritage ofeach community. The organisation is also undertaking the Sample

Bar Kenya Project, whose aim is to digitize Kenyan music, ensuring its preservation for future

generations. with each traditional music being captured, each instrument preserved, and every

cultwal class conducted, the Sample Bar Kenya project, reflects Bomas of Kenya solid commitment

to safeguard the Kenyan heritage, and promote cultural tourism.

ii). Environmental Performance

BOK being under the tourism sector is a key entity in cultural heritage preservation, wildlife and

biodiversity resources preservation. The organisation in its commitment to environmental

protection and performance started a botanical garden and nursery to preserve various indigenous

and medicilal herbs that face envirorunental theat and extinction. In addition, due to the

organisation's proximity to the Nairobi National Park, waste management measures and initiatives

have been put in place to ensure that wild animals are protected. we are also in the process of
establishing a water purification system aimed at water recycling and adheres to the various

environmental protection guidelines by the National Environment Management Authority.
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iii). Employee Welfare

Bomas ofKenya holds her employees in highly value and esteem and will continue to do so. This

will ensure its employees are highly charged, motivated and committed thereby enabling BOK to

gain sustainable competitive edge over competitors. BOK is an equal opporhtnity employer and

does not in its recruitrnent discriminate based on gender, age, race and ethnicity. All appoinhnents

are made with the approval of the Board and are made in accordance with the existing job

descriptions and specifications for various cadres of staffin respective fields of employment. BOK

also recognizes the need for training and development of all its employees and offer training

oppomrnities to all its employees in order to improve their work performance and personal

development. All employees ofBOK are subject to relevant provisions ofother regulations, rules

and instructions issued by other authorities who are authorized to do so.

At Bomas of Kenya, we also committed to the safety and well-being of our employees. Our safety

policy is tully compliant with the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007 (OSHA). BOK

maintains rigorous safety protocols, conduct regular safety audits, and ensure all employees are

well-versed in safety procedures. This cornrnitment extends to creating a conducive environment

where everyone feels empowered to raise safety concems without hesitation. Through these

policies, Bomas of Kenya sfives to create a workplace where talent thrives, diversity flourishes,

and safety is important. Our commitment to gender equality, stakeholder collaboration, skills

enhancement, and safety highlights our belief that a motivated, diverse, and safe workforce is

essential to our conthued success.

iv). Market Place Practices-

a) ResponsibleCompetition Practice

BOK has been at the forefront to ensure responsible competition practice. These practices have

enabled BOK to experience a fair, transparent, and ethical competition in the context of cultural

and tourism activities. Over the years, BOK has been committed to setting fair and transparent

prices for its cultual events, tours, and services. The prices for cultural events are clearly

communicated to the clients in advance, ensuring that customers are provided with accurate pricing

information. In addition to setting fair pnces, BOK also maintains ethical relationships with

customers which has been an important practice that has ensured transparency, faimess, and the

protection ofcustomers' rights when providing cultural events and services. By incorporating these
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elements into our marketing practices, BoK has been able to show a commitment to responsible

business practices within the cultural and tourism industry.

b) Responsible Supply Chain and Supplier Relations

Bomas ofKenya cornrnitment to ethical conduct extends to every aspect ofour business, including

ow interactions with suppliers. We recognize that Eeating suppliers fairly, hansparently, and

respectfully is essential to building trust and promoting sustainable business practices. BoK has

stategies in place to ensure an open supplier prequalification process as well as an open tendering

process. All prequalification documentation, including requirements, guidelines, and evaluation

criteria, are made available to potential suppliers. This transparency enswes that suppliers

understand what is expected and how they will be assessed. In addition to having an open

prequalifrcation process, BoK takes a strategic approach to supplier selection, taking into

consideration factors such as quality, value, and ethical considerations. suppliers are engaged

through a competitive evaluation process that ensures alignment with our values and objectives.

This approach allows us to work with suppliers who share our commitment to responsible business

practices.

BOK also prioritizes clear and transparent contractual agreements with suppliers. These agreements

detail the terms and conditions of our engagements, including pricing, deliverables, and payment

schedules. We recognize that honouring our payment obligations ensures the financial stability and

trustworthiness of our organization. As we continue with our engagement with suppliers, our

objective is to remain firm to our commitment to ethical business practices and responsible supplier

relationships. We recognize that our suppliers are integral to our success, and we strive to cultivate

lasting partnerships built on trust, transparency, and mutual benefit.

c) Respotrsible Marketing and Advertisement

BoK has continued to maintain responsible marketing and advertising through adopting marketing

strategies that meet customer's needs and also impact the community positively. The organisation

has ensured transparency by clearly disctosing all charges associated with visiting the Bomas of
Kenya on the website. In the effort to ensure responsible advertising of BoK products, the company

uses advertising channels that have a reputation for promoting content that aligns with BoK's values

and responsible marketing principles. This includes the use of pnnt media, TV/Radio and
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newspapers which are in accordance with the existing laws and regulations. BoK has also been

committed to providing regular training to marketing and advertising teams on responsible

marketing practices, ethics, and compliance with relevant regulations. This practice has ensured

that the organization's marketing efforts are conducted in an ethical manner.

d) Product Stewardship

BOK has taken significant efforts to ensure product stewardship in its operations, particularly in

the context ofpreserving cultural heritage and promoting responsible tourism. During the year, the

institution collaborated with local artisans and craftsmen, supporting safe working conditions, and

ethical practices in the creation of culnual products. This engagement has ensured responsible

production and preserves traditional craftsmanship. Bomas ofKenya has also taken an initiative in

taking great care in the creation and sale of cultural artefacts and souvenirs. These products are

crafted using sustainable materials such as natural fibres, ensuring the artefacts are culturally

authentic. BOK's commitment to product stewardship aligns with its mission of cultural

preservation and responsible tourism. By implementing these practices, Bomas of Kenya

contributes not only to the preservation of Kenya's rich cultural heritage but also to sustainable and

responsible tourism practices, benefiting both the community and the environment.

v). Corporate Social ResponsibilityiCommunity Engrgements

BOK is committed to making a positive impact on society through its Corporate Social

Responsibility initiatives. ln alignment with its CSR values, the organization actively participated

in the Magical Kenya Tembo Naming Festival (MKTNF), an initiative that blends cultural heritage

with wildlife conservation. In addition, the company took part in celebrating Swahili Day, an event

that showcased Swahili naditions, music, dance, art and cuisine. Celebrating Swahili Day as part

of our CSR activity was a meaningful way of promoting cultural awareness, and inclusivity while

engaging with the community. Further, the organization recognizes the immense potential ofsports,

particularly football. As a result, BOK remained steadfast in its commitment to supporting the

Bomas ofKenya Football Club. An endeavour thal encourages the gro*th offootball talent within

the community, providing opportunities lor aspiring young players. As we move forward, we aspire

to further enlance our CSR activities through vanous initiatives that will strengthen our

engagement with the community around us.
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8. Strtement ofPerformance ageinst Predetermined Objectives lor FY 2022-202!

Section 8l Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requires the accounting

officer to include in the frnancial statement, a statement of the national goverunent entity's

performance against predetermined objectives.

Bomas of Kenya Ltd has foru strategic pillars and objectives within ths cunent Strategic Plan for

the F\ 2022- F'{ 2023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Strategic Pillar I : Preservation of Kenyan Culture

Strategic Pillar 2: Promotion of the fuch and Diverse Kenyao Cultr.ue

Strategic Pillar 3: Financing and Ioveshnent

Stategic Pillar 4: Human Resource Developmenq Govemance and Support Services

Bomas of Kenya Ltd develops its annual work plans based on the above four pillars. Assessment

of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The entity

achieved its performance targets set for the FY 2022-2023 period for its four strategic pillan, as

indicated in the diagram below:

Prpscrvation
Kcnym Culturc

of . To urdqiakc research on
cultural valucs, practiccs
and customs of Kcnya's
cthnic communitics;

. To documcnt and packagc
rcscarch fiadings on
cthaic cultural values,
praclices and customs;

. To cduc8tr Ke[y8ns snd
toudsts on thc rich and
divcrse Kenya's culh[al
heritage;

o To divcnifu and
modcmizc thc cxising
cultural producs offer in
linc with contemporary
tourisB bends;

. To iucrc&se pafttcrship
prograDs with courty
govcnmcnts and tou'ism
sakcholdcrs oo culturc
pr$crvation

Numbcr of
MOUs and
researcb reports
Numbcr of ncw
products
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Numbcr of
publishcd
articlcs
Ccrtificate of
copyright
Numbcr of re-
choreographcd
dances

Cultural
8rtefacts gallery
io placc
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thcmcd dghts

Seck and form
research parrnerships
with other govemment
agencies
Identiff culhual
product gaps
Publish rcsearch
findings in rcnowncd
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Publication of patcDt

on BoK
chorcographcd
culhual danccs and
designcd culnral
cosfumcs
Re-choreograph
existing cultural
danscs of the BOK
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Establish a cultuEl
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fashion shows

BOK prmcred with
Libirlo Mrsic (Sweden)
to digidze Kenyan
Music and dances

BOK identified thc need
to digitize Kcnyan music
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Thc entity is cunady
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costumes

Rc-imaging of rhc
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is in proccss
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showcasing thq
architcctural stylcs that
arc uniquc to e8ch group.

Bomas of Kenya
fcaturcs taditional
Kenyan cuisinc in its
EstaUrarB.
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Promotion of thc
rich and diverse
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9. Corporate Governrnce Statement

a) Introduction

At Bomas of Kenya, the Board of Directors holds a steadfast cornmitment to upholding high

standards ofperformance, legal compliance, ethical conduct, and governance across all areas ofthe

institution. This commitment echoes throughout the institution's interactions with shareholders,

customers, employees, communities and the nation at large. It therefore endeavours to design policy

thrusts that bring agreement in its inter-relations with them. Recognizing its responsibility to

various stakeholders, the Board appreciates the kust vested in it by shareholden, the loyalty of
customers, and the dedication of employees. It also values the synergetic retationship with the

communities within which it operates. This appreciation drives the Board's determination to design

policies that harmoniously align the institution's interactions with these stakeholders. As part of its

efforts to manage and mitigate risks, the Board constantly reviews the institution's intemal control

framework. It precisely zrssesses the processes put in place by Management to acnralize these

controls, constantly refining them to optimize effectiveness.

To this end, the Board has embraced an array of policies, procedures, and regulations to guide

Management's operational decisions. Various committees have also been established to strenglhen

the efficacy of its duties while concurrently fostering the institution,s sustainability.

b) Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of Bomas of Kenya Limited has established four committees to help it in
processing of issues before their ultimate submission to the full board.

The committees are: -

a) The Finance and Human Resource Committee;
b) The Audit Committee;
c) The Development and [nvestments Committee; and

d) The Operations Committee

c) Risk Management

At Bomas of Kenya, risk management stands as an essential pillar within our intemal control

fi:amework. The Board ensures that measures are put in place to manage risks associated with the

operations and functions ofthe institution, so as to guarantee the institution's sustainability. Guided

by a comprehensive risk management strategy, we ensure a resilient organizational structure. This

approach involves thorough monitoring our intemal systems, evaluation of projects by external
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experts, and the establishment of codes of practice that support corporate accountability. We also

promote independent and objective oversight, and review information presented by the

management to identi$, potential risk areas and developing policies and strategies to mitigate the

risks.

d) Operational Risks

Operational risks are risks associated with losses arising from the failue ofsystems, human error,

fraud, or extemal events. Although complete prevention of operational risks is an impractical

endeavour, Bomas of Kenya Limited remains confident to proliciently manage and mitigate them.

This is achieved tbrough the careful application of control frameworks, vigilant monitoring, and

proactive risk mitigation strategies. The controls that the institution has put in place to minimize

possible operational risks include: -

a) Segregation ofduties - by outlining roles and responsibilities, we ensure a system ofchecks

and balances that mitigates the risk oferrors and unnecessary influence;

b) Training of staff - we equip our staffs with the knowledge required to navigate potential

downsides, thereby reinforcing our defences against operational risks;

c) Definition ofauthorization levels - conhol over authorization levels ensures that actions are

carried out within approved boundaries, limiting the risk of unauthorized actions;

d) Intemal auditing - an independent intemal audit function provides critical insights into our

operational landscape, validating the elliciency of our risk mitigation strategies and;

e) Implementation of access conhols - by strictly regulatrng access to sensitive information

and systems, we safeguard ourselves from unauthorized activities.

e) Credit Risk

Credit risk is a risk that arises from trade and other receivables where debtors are not able to meet

thet obligation as expected. Bomas ofKenya Limited does not have a significant concentration of

credit risk. This is because the finance department assesses the credit worthiness of each client that

the institution deals with, including his or her financial position, experience, and other related

factors. To further enhance our safeguarding measrues, we institute a credit period of 30 days for

our debtors. This prudent timeframe not only provides a reasonable span for obligations to be met
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10. Mrnagcment Dlrcusslon rnd Atralysls

Bomas of Kanya continues to deliver its mandate of preserving, maintaining and promotion of the

Rich Diverse culhral values of various ethnic groups of Kanya for posterity. The institution act as

a tourist attraction centre thus Bomas of Kenya is expected to preserve the authenticity of the

Kenya's Culhral values and to portray them in the pure form. The Cultural tourism is a distinctive

niche that impacts the tourists who visit the institution which is under the tourism sector.

BoK held a Jubilee event to mark its 50 years of existcnce since the institution has successfully

provided cultural tourism products since 1971. The institution leveraged on the event to incrcase

is publicity in order to in ensure that revenue from the appropriation in aid as well stabitised tom
the various streams. Nevertheless, the institution continued to comply with the relevant stahrtory

including P.A.Y.E, NSSF, NHIF, VAT and the Higher Education Loans Board.

ln the financial ycer, the revenue performance was majorly from parties and reception lt s6.syo,

which can be attibuted to the provision of meals and drinks during the 2O22 General Elections,

National Police, Prison and National Youth Service Reforms Taskforce event and other major

events. Revenue tom the hire of halls was 22.5%io while restaurant sales and gate collection

contributed ro 17 .0% and 2.6Yo of the total revenue respectively. All the skeams are expected to

grow in the coming year, as the economy fully reopened due to political stability which was

recorded after the August 9th, 2022 elections. These can be represorted graphically as shown below.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Tfuough the board of directors, the management initiated the relevant activities the staff pension

scheme which has been successfully actualized in the last financial year. So far, the staff pension

scheme has increased staff morale and has ensured certainty for Bomas of Kenya Ltd staff after

retirement or exit from the institution. The Management also appointed a board oftrustees who are

currently overseeing the process of ensuring staff get relevant support for matters conceming

pension scheme. Further, it should be noted that this was a milestone in compliance with the

National Treasury requirements in regard to govemment institutions operationalization ofpension

scheme to support the staff in regard to retirement.

In order to improve the organisation facilities, the institution successfully completed the

Rehabilitation of the main Auditorium Hall in collaboration with the Ministry of Public Works. The

institution is now awaiting funds for the second phase of the hall's rehabilitation, and all final work

is expected to be completed by the end of the current frscal year 202312024. The organization is

also implementing the Sample Bar Project in partnership with Libido Music (Sweden) and Heva

Fund LLP which is expected to be completed by the end of the current fiscal year 202312024. This

exciting digital technology project is expected to forever change the way we envision the

documentation & preservation of traditional music in the continent. Further, BOK is in the

processing of constructing the proposed Bomas Intemational Convention Cenhe (BICC), a

collaborative endeavour through a public-private pannership a transformative project that will

enhance the institutions revenue generation capabilities, and enhance preservation and celebration

of Kenya's diverse cultural heritage.
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11. Rcport of the Dlrectors

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2023, which show the state ofthe Bomas of Kenya Limited affairs.

i) Principd ectivlties

The principal activities of Bomas of Kenya Ltd continue to be to preserve, promote, and maiatain

the diverse cultures of Kenya for tourism development.

ii) Resultr

The results of Bomas ofKenya Ltd for the year ended June 30, 2O23, are set out on page I ud 2

Below is summary of the profit or loss made during the year.

iil) Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page vii to ix

iv) Auditors

The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of Bomaq of Kenya Ltd in accordaace

with Article 229 of the constitution of Kenya and the public Audit Act 2015 for the yearlperiod

ended June 30, 2023.

By of the Board

CPA o MUGILWA
CORPORATE SECRETARY/SECRETARY TO THE BOARI)
DATE: t5\s t F"-.t

Proft{Losr) Before Texedon x,22A.,739 (41;929A47)

Income Ter Erpense(Credtt)

Profl U(Loss) After Tarrtlon filU,739 (41,929,46iD
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12. Statement of Directors' Responsibllities

Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, Companies act and section 14 of the State

Corporations Act, - require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of that entity,

which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Bomas of Kenya Ltd at the end of the

financial year and the operating results ofBomas ofKenya Ltd for that year/period. The Directors

are also required to ensue that Bomas ofKenya Ltd keeps proper accounting records which disclose

with reasonable accuracy the financial position of Bomas of Kenya Ltd. The Directors are also

responsible for safeguarding the assets of Bomas ofKenya Ltd.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation ofBomas ofKenya Ltd financial

statements, which give a true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofBomas of Kenya Ltd for and as

at the end ofthe financial year ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (i). Maintaining

adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective

thoughout the reporting period, (ii). maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the frnancial position of Bomas of Kenya Ltd, (iiD. Designing,

implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

the frnancial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements, whether due

to error or fraud, (iv). Safeguarding the assets of Bomas ofKenya Ltd, (v). selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies, and (vi). Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

The Directors responsibility for Bomas of Kenya Ltd financial statements, which have been

prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements

and estimates, in conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the

manner required by the PFM Act,2012, Companies Act and the State Corporations Act.
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Statement of Directors' Responribilities (Condnued)

The Directors are of the opinion that the Bomas of Kenya Ltd's financial statements give a true and

fair view of the state ofBomas ofKenya Ltd's kansactions durhg the financial year ended June 30,

2023, and of Bomas of Kanya Ltd's financial position as at that date. The Directors further confirm

the completeness of the accounting records maintained for Bomas ofKenya Ltd, which have been

relied upon in the preparation of the Bomas of Kenya Ltd's financial statements as well as the

adequacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to iudicate that Bomas of Kenya Ltd will not

remainla going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the fnancial statements

Bomas ofKenya finan;ial statements were approved by the Board on

signed on its behalfby:

- ..,1t, '..,")', 2023rll,d

HON, JAITE JEPKORIR KIPTOO
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD

CPA NIXONMUCILWA
ACCOUNTING OFFICER I
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR.GE ERAL

L n h un t i n g,.l Lrr u n I u lt i I t tr

HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 3oo84-ooroo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON BOMAS OF KENYA LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
arc lairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting franework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot the Constitution and
the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together constitute
the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bomas of Kenya Limited set out
on pages 1 to 41 , which comprise of the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

Report ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Bomas of Kenya Linitedfor the year ended 30 June, 2023



accounting.r,olicies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I

have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Bomas of Kenya Limited as at 30 June, 2023 and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with the Companies Act,
2015 of the Laws of Kenya.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

l. Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment

As previously reported, the last valuation for the assels was conducted in 1996. The long
delay fails to take cognizance of the economic changes in the value of the assets contrary
to lnternational Accounting Standard No.16, Paragraph 31 which stipulates that property,
plant and equipment should be revalued regularly.

ln the circumstances, the value of the properiy, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,309,'154,682 could not be confirmed.

2. Trade and Other Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other receivables balance of
Kshs.70,866,696 net of provision for bad and doubtful receivables as disclosed in Note
16 to the flnancial statements. However, the following anomalies were noted;

(i) As reported in the previous years, trade and other receivables exclude opening
balance for long outstanding debtors of Kshs.5,844,308 in the financial year ended
30 June, 2020. No evidence of approval for write-off for long outstanding debts
has been provided by the Management despite the Public lnvestment
Committee's recommendation to pursue a write-off through the Cabinet Secretary
of the National Treasury.

(ii) Trade receivables of Kshs.15,304,806 includes Kshs.2,535,032, and
Kshs.11,364,748 that have remained outstanding for a period of over 30 to 120
days (four months) and over 120 days (beyond four months) respectively contrary
to the Company's credit policy. No evidence has been provided of efforts made
by the Management to recover the debts.

(iii) The balance includes staff debtors of Kshs.771 , 749 out of which Kshs.437,434 is
in respect of long outstanding debts owed by ex-staff members from prior years
with some dating as far back as 2009. No effort has been made to recover the
long outstanding debts.

Report oflhe Auditor-General on Bomas of Kenya Limitedfor lhe year ended j0 June, 2023
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(iv) As previously reported deposits and prepayments of Kshs.1,183,500 made to a
local service provider and utility company have not been recovered as of the time
of the audit. The service provider company as under liquidation and it was not
possible to confirm if the amount could be recovered. ln this regard, the debts
outstanding remain doubtful and no efforts have been made to seek authority from
the Cabinet Secretary of the National Treasury for possible write off.

(v) The balance also includes other receivables of Kshs.55 ,137 ,'122 out of which
Kshs.S1,897,978 comprising of Kshs.14,315,363 due from Ushanga Kenya
initiative and Kshs.37,582,615 from Little Theatre club have remained outstanding
for a long period of time despite several reimbursements request letters sent to
State Department for Tourism by the Company.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the trade and other receivables
balance of Kshs.70,866,696 could not be confirmed and their recoverability is in doubt.

3. Trade Payables and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects trade and other payables balance of
Kshs.116,154,090 and as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements. The balance
includes trade creditors of Kshs.74,719,913 out of which Kshs.60,362,423 have remained
outstanding for a period of more than 120 days. Further, the balance includes
Kshs.21,076,204 which have not been supported by supplier invoices.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of trade and other payables
balance of Kshs.116,154,090 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Bomas of Kenya Limited Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other lnformation

The Directors are responsible for other information, which comprises the Chairman's
Statement, Report of the Directors, Corporate Governance Statement and the Statement
of Directors Responsibilities. The other information does not include the financial
statements and my auditors report thereon.

Report of the Auditor-Generql on Bomos of Kenya Limitedfor theyear ended 30 June, 2023
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My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I do not
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the procedures performed,
except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Engagement of Temporary Employees, Attachments and lnternships

Review of the payment vouchers for casual employees revealed that Kshs.1,560, 000
was paid on an IEBC election function. However, the payments voucher number A 6868
of 8 July, 2022 and A 7085 of 18 August 2022 were not adequately supported. Further,
the criteria for engagement of the casuals could not be established.

ln the circumstances, the lawfulness of the payments to casuals of Kshs.1,560,000 could
not be confirmed.

2. Award of Quotations without Professional Opinions

Note 11 to the financial statements reflects administration costs of Kshs.760,895,547.
The amount includes repairs and maintenance expenditure of Kshs.127,858,567 out of
which service and works of Kshs.12,336,638 were procured through requests for
quotation procurement method. However, a review of procurement records provided for
audit, revealed that the professional opinions by the head of the procurement function
approved by the Accounting Officer were lacking contrary to Section 84(1) of the Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal Act 2015 which states that the head of procurement
function of a procuring entity shall, alongside the report to the evaluation committee as
secretariat comments, review the tender evaluation report and provide a signed
professional opinion to the Accounting Officer on the procurement or asset disposal
proceedings.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Rehabilitation of the Auditorium

The construction works for the rehabilitation of the main auditorium at Bomas of Kenya
was awarded to a local contractor on 22 November 2021 at a contract sum of
Kshs.86,475,905 with a start date of 3 January, 2022 and expected practical completion
date of 3 July,2022.
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The following unsatisfactory issues were noted in the implementation of the project.

(i) Financial Appraisal of the Project

On 27 July, 2022 a request was made by the State Department for Public Works to the
Accounting Officer through letter Ref: QD118/10947A /OL.1|2O to approve the use of
contingency monies and omission of some items from the contract such as, canopy
construction at the emergency exits, re-roofing of the dancers changing room,
replacement of the main entrance canopy and equipping of the server room. lt also stated
the cost of remaining additional works to be within the contract sum based on inspection
minute held on 6 June, 2022. However, no documentary evidence of the financial
appraisal was provided to quantify the value of omitted works and additional works to
justify the use of the contingency monies of Kshs.8,000,000.

(ii) lrregular Contract Extension

The State Department for Public Works requested the Accounting Officer vide letter Ref:
D118/NB/N8202110947N53 to extend the contract period by eight (8) weeks from
28 April, 2023 lo 28 April, 2023. However, as at the time of audit in February, 2024, no
extended contract was provided for audit yet the works had not been completed.

(iii) Contract Payments and Project Close Out

On 11 July, 2023 lhe Project Manager issued a certificate of practical completion with
several items on builders works, mechanical works and electrical works being incomplete.
Although works valued at Kshs.76,676,518 or 87% of contract sum had been certified
and paid the project remains uncompleted. Further, there was no evidence provided to
prove that the contractor was charged liquidated damages for failure to complete the
project within the agreed contract period.

ln the circumstances, the value for money on project expenditure incurred on account of
the project may not be realized.

4. Staff in Acting Positions in Excess of Six Months Period

Review of sampled staff files revealed that there were four members of staff comprising
of Manager Food and Beverage, Supply Chain, Marketing and Corporate Communication
and Chief lnternal Auditor who had been in acting capacities for periods in excess of six
month without being confirmed or the positions filled competitively. This is contrary to
Section 4.2.5 ot Bomas of Kenya Human Resource Policies and Regulations Manual
2016 which provides that the maximum period for an acting allowance shall not exceed
six (6) months.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the Human Resource Policies and
Regulations.

5. Lack of a Contract /Agreement

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income reflects cost of sales of
Kshs.71,469,980 and as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. The amount
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includes Kshs.1,580,610 incurred on liquefied petroleum gas and Kshs.18,930,000
incurred on assorted restaurant supplies.

Review of records provided for audit revealed that the Management of Bomas advanced
Kshs.650,000 to the suppliers as top up upon exhaustion of the amounts without entering
into an agreement. This is conkary to Section 1 35(1 ) of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015 which provides that the existence of a contract shall be confirmed
through the signature of a contract document incorporating all agreements between the
parties and such contract shall be signed by the Accounting Officer or an officer
authorized in writing by the Accounting Officer of the procuring entity and the successful
tenderer.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAI) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies Act, 2015 I report based on the audit, that:

(i) I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

( ii) ln my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so
far as appears from the examination of those records; and,
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(iii) The Company's financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and for
maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls, risk
management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the Company or cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in aicordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

Reporl o/the Auditor-General on Bomas of Kenya Linitedfor the year ended 30June,2023
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ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

a Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
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report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA BS
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

22 April,2024

a

t
-rr'
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Bomas of Kenye Limited
Annual Report end Flnancial Strtements for the year ended June 30, 2023

14. Statement ofProlit or Loss and Other Comprehenslve Income for the year ended 3eth

June 2023.

REVEMJES

Revenue from Conbact with Customers 6 578,594,91t 14s,627 ,484
Cost ofsales 7 (71,469,980) (34,366,2s3)
Gross fit 507,124,931 trt,25t,23t
Other Income

Grants from the Nstional Govemment 8 302,903,987 285,515,258
Other Income (Grants from Other Partners) 9 8,011,824 9,354,815

losses)Other l0 203,924 1,742,451
TOTALREVEIYUES 8183u$67 407,973,155

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administsation Costs ll 760,895,547 449,903,213
Selli.ng and Disriburion Cosrs t2 1,124,380

TOTAL OPERATING E)(PENSES 762,019.927 449.903,28

PROIIT(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 56,2U,739 (41929,458)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDTT)

AFTERTAXATIONoPR FI 56324,739 (41929A68)
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Bomer of Kenye Limltcd
Annud Report end Finrncid Strtemenb for the yeer ended Ju te 30,2023

ASSETS

Non -current rclet!
Property plant & equipment t4 2309,154,6E2 233E21729s

Total Non{unent Assets 2309,15/,,6t2 2338?t7,295
CT'RRENTASSETS
Inventories l5 2,919,436 3,886,732
Trade and other Receivables l6 70,866,696 67,222,59E

Benk and Cash balance t7 84,861,457 56,992,2rs
TOTAL CI'RRENT ASSETS 15&547,5t9 128,101,545
TOTALASSETS 2.467.t0227t 2.46631t.t40

EOIITY A"rip LTABIJTTES:
itShre Capital l8 5,080,000 5,080,o00

t9 l&,829,167 1&,829,167Revaluation Reserve

2l 203,996,t2s 147;t71.385Retained Eamings

2,M1,406,876Deferred capital grant 'r) 1,977,742,889

2351.64E.181 2359.0t7.429CAPITALAND RESERVES
NON{T'RRENT LIABILTTTES

Defened tax liability
TOTAL NON 4I'RRENT LIABILITIT'S

Current Lhbllldes
t07,231,411Trade and other payables 21 116,154,090

TOTAL CT'RRDNT LIABILITIES I16,154,090 r07 23t,4tt
TOTAI EQUTTY & LIABILITIES 2-457.802271 2-4653 1 8.840

15. Stetement of Flnenclal Posldon cs at 30 June 2023

The statemetrts were approved by the Board on

behalf

Name:
Director

l'i)urnr* Nrme: k^ur \
GcnereVC.E.O/lVI.D llerdofFlnrnce

ICPAK M/IIO: \a.l Sl

\ 2024 and siped on its

U Kocr4 Name:.-!rs*c Jep troa,c
Chelrmcn of the Boerd

)

l(r /i10



Bom83 of Kenyr Llmited
Annual Report end Finenciel Strtements for the yerr ended June 30, 2023

16. Strtemetrt of Cbengec in Equity for the yerr ended 30June 2023

At JuIy 1, 2021 5,0t0,(mo l&,t29,167 189,700,t53 1.972,404,615 2332,014$36
Net surpluv(Deficit) for the 30th June, 2022 (41,929,468) (41,929,46t)
Transfer of from funds to retained (61,374,2s8) (61,374,258)
Ad Grant ittle Theatre)for (19,623,481) (19,623,481)

Crrdnt 150,000,000 150,000,000
At Jtme 30,2022 5,0E0,000 16/,,829,167 t47.771j85 2,ML,406,U7 23se,wAze

AtJ 1,2022 5,080,000 1u,E29,167 147,771385 2,lMtA06,E77 23s9,0E7A29
Net surpluv(Deficit) for the year 30th June,2023 s6224,739 56J,z,,739
Transfer of iation from capital firnds to retained eamrngs (63,66.1,987) (63,663,987)
C Grent
At June 30, 2023 5,0t0,000 16/,,829,167 203,996,124 1977J42,t9O 2'35l,54t,lEl

-
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Bomar of Kenya Llmited
Annuel Report end Flnancirl Strtements for the yeer ended June 30, 2023

17. Statement ofCsrh trlowr for the veer ended 30 June 2023

CASE FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVTITES
Crch generrted from Operedonr 25 62.266.69t (884.544)

Net Cash from Operadng Actlvldes 62J,66..693 (tt45.r4)
CASH FLOWS FROM II{VESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed AssetVWork in progiesVeICnC (34.601.37s) (75.611.891)
Proceeds from disposal ofproperty, plant and equipment 203,924

CASII FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Development Grants 130.376.518.0r
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash aod Cash equivalents 27.869.242 53.880.083
Add: Beginning Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents s6.99221s 3.112.132
ENDING BALAI\CE OF CASH & CASH
EQUWALENTS 25(c\ E4.E61.457 fi992215
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Bomrs of Kenya Limited
Annual Report rnd Financial Strtements for the yerr ended June 30, 2023

18. Strtement of Comperiron of Budget rnd Actual amounb for the period ended 30 June 2023

RevcIqc XShr- KShr. KShr. XSLr. KSht"
Sale of goods

Sale of scrviccs 103,000,000 103,000,000 578,798,E35 (47 5,198,835) 462o/c (i)
Transfers from the Governmeot 239,24n,0@ 239,240,000 239,240,000 0v"
CAPITAL gra rcalizrd

Graat iiom other Parttrcrs 8,011,E24 (8,01 1,824)
Totd i.ncoD. u2,2.40,OD0 342,240,0fl) E25,030,659 ,lt3,tl0,6s9
Erpcorcr

Compeosation of cmployecs r90,639,705 t ,$9,7M 233493t97 (42,853,79t) -220/. (ii)
Boords Emolume[ts I4,900,400 14,9@,400 s,56t193 9,33E,907 63% (iii)
Admiaistration cxlrures 126,323,708 t26,323,',tot 457,512,467 (331,rEE,759) -262yo (iv)
Use ofGoods and Scrvices 9,32t,4E6 9,32t,4t6 7l,.169,9E0 (62,r4tA94) -667% (v)
Lcgal & Profcssiooals costs 1,054,700 1,054,700 1,788,483 (733,783) -70% (vi)
CAPITAL
Totd 342,40.fir0 312210,W 769,A25920 (427,5E5,920\

us / Deficit for thc 56,224,739 (s6,224,739\
tal ture 68.000.000 82.0@.000 150.@0.000 (l 50.000.0@) -tooP/o
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the yelr ended June 30, 2023

Budget Vrrhnces

The over-expenditure / under expenditure (negative variances) reflected in recurrent budget

vote-lines were due to the following as referenced under notes:

i) Sele of Services

Bomas ofKenya Ltd hosted the 2022 General Elections exercise which had not been budgeted

for thus the increase in AIA as well other events including the Magical Kenya Travel Expo

(MKTE) and the Kenya Police and Prisons Reforms Taskforce.

iD Compensation of employees

This is due to the fact that the demand for casual employees went up since the institution hosted

the IEBC staff and other stakeholders in the national tallying exercise during the first quarter

of the financial year as well other events including the Magical Kenya Travel Expo (MKTE)

and the Kenya Police and Prisons Reforms Taskforce.

iiD AdministrationExpenses

The IEBC function and other major events that were hosted by Bomas of Kenya necessitated

increase in utilities and other hiring charges thus the unfavourable variance in the expenditure

item.

iv) Selling and Distribution Expenses

This is attributable to the fact that we needed to stock up our restaurant in order to meet the

rising demand ofIEBC during the general election especially in the first quarter ofthe year as

well as other major events which were hosted in the institution.
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financiel Statements for the yerr etrded June 30, 2023

19. Notes to the Financiat Stitements

l. General Information

Bomas of Kenya Ltd is established by and derives its authority and accountability ftom the

companies Act. The entity is wholly owned by the Govemment of Kenya and is domiciled in

Kenya. The entity's principal activity is to preserve, promote, and maintain the diverse cultures of
Kenya for tourism development.

For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement

of financial position and tho profit and loss account by the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income in these financial statements.

2. Ststement of Compliance and Basls of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurment

at re-valued amounts ofcertain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amognts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statem€nts in

conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) allows the use of estimates and

assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process ofapptying Bomas

ofKenya accounting policies. The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya

Shillings, which is the fi:nctional and reporting crurency of Bomas of Kenya Ltd. The financial

statements have been prepared in accordance with the pFM Act, the state corporations Act and

Intemational Financial Reporting standards [FRS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied to all the years present.
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Bomas of Kenye Limited
ADntrd Report rnd Flnenciel Statementr for the yerr ended June 30, 2023

Noter to the Flnancld Stetements (Condnued)
3. Appllcadon ofNew and Revlsed Internationd Flnencial Repordng Stendards

(rFRS)

Ncw and amcndcd standards and lnterpretations in bsue but not yet etlecive in the year

eadcd 30 .lune 2023.

i.

IFRS 17 Insurance

Conracb (issued in
May 2017)

The new standard establishes principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation

and disclosure of insurance contracts issued.

It also requires similar principles to be

applied to reinsurance contracts held and

inveshent contrarts with discretionary
participation feanres issued. The objective is

to ensure that entities provide relevant
information in a way that faithfully
represents those contacts. The Company
does not issue insuranse cont-acts.

Effective for annual

periods beginning on or
after ld January 2023.

I

The amendments are

effective for annual

reporting periods

beginning on or after

January l,2023.

IAS 8- Accounting
Policies, Errors, and

Estimates

The amendments, applicable to annual

periods beginning on or after lst January

2023, introduce a definition of 'accounting

estimates' and include other amendments to

IAS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in
accounting estimates.

I

The amendments are

effective for annual

periods beginning on or
after January l, 2023.

Amendments to IAS
I titled Disclosure of
Accounting Policies
(issued in February

202t)

The amendments, applicable to annual

periods beginning on or after lst Jauuary

2023, require entities to disclose their
moteriel accounting policy infonnation
rather than their slgnlfcant accounting
policies.

8



Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report end Flnenclel Ststements for the yeer ended June 30, 2023

(The Directors have assessed the applicable standards and amendments. Based on their assessment of
impact of appltcation of the above, they do not upect that there will be a signilicant impact on the

company's fnanc ial s tatements.

Amendments to IAS
l2 titled Deferred
Tax Related to
Assets and

Liabilities arising
from a Single
Transaction (issued

inMay 2021)

The amendments, applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after lst January
2023, narrowed the scope of the recognition
exernption in paragraphs l5 and 24 oflAS 12

(recogrition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial
recopition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

The amendmenti are

effective for lnnud
pedods beginning on or
after January l, 2023.
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Bomas of Kenye Limlted
Annud Report and Flnenciel Stltements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Note3 to the FlDrnchl StrtemenB (Condnued)
Appllcetlon of New and Revlsed Internatlonal Flnancial Reportlng Standards flFRS)ii New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet efective in the year ended

30 June 2023.

(The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above untl they become efective. Based on lheir

assessment of the potential impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there will be a

sigtiJicant impact on the company's fnancial slatements)-

iil Early adoption ofstandards

Bomas of Kenya Ltd did ndt early - adopt any new or amended stsndards in year 2022-2023 .

Amenrtments to IAS I
titled Classification of
Liabilities as Curredt or
Non-currcnt (issued in
January 2020, amended in
October 2022)

The amendments, applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after lst
laruary 2024, clari$ a criterion in IAS
I for classi$ing a liability as non-
current: the requirement for an entity to
have the right to defer settlement of the

liabitity for at least 12 months after the

reporting period

The amendments are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or after

January 1, 2024. Eailier
application is permitted.

Amendment to IFRS 16

titled Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback
(issued in September

2022)

The amendment, applicable to annual

periods begindng on or after lst
lanuzry 2024, requires a seller-lessee to

subsequently measure lease liabitities
arising from a leaseback in a way that it
does not recognise any amount of the

gain or loss.

The amendments are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or after

January l, 2024. Earliet
application is permitted.

Amendments to LAS I
titled Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants
(issued in October 2022)

The amendments, applicable to annual

periods beginning on or after lst
Ianuary 2024, improve the information
an entity provides about liabilities
arising from loan arrangements for
which an entity's right to defer

settlement ofthose liabilities for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

is subject to the entity complying with
conditions specified in the loan

arrangement.

The amendments are

effective for annual periods

beginning on or after

January l, 2024. Earlier
application is permitted.

10



Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Stetements (Continued)

4. Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies
The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are Eet out

below:

a) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in a

contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Bomas of
Kenya recognizes revenue when it transfers control ofa product or service to a customer.

Revenue from the sale ofgoods and services is recognized in the year in which Bomas

of Kenya delivers products to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability ofthe related receivables is reasonably assured.

ii) Grents from National Government are recognized in the year in which Bomas of Kenya

actually receives such grants. Recurrent gmnts are recogtrized in the statemmt of
comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of
financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful

life of the assets that has been acquired using such funds.

iii) Flnance income. comprises interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in

securities, and is recognized in profit or loss on a time proportion basis using the effective

interest rate method.

iv) Dividend income is recognized in the income statement in the year in which the right to

receive the payment is established.

v) Rental income is recognized in the income statement as it accrues using the effective

interest implicit in lease agreements.

vi) Other income is recognized as it accrues

i)
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annurl Report rnd Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

b) In-klndcontributions

In-kind contributions are donations that are made to Bomas of Kenya in the form of actual

good$ and/or services rather than in money or cash terms. These donations may include

vehicles, equipment or personnel services. Where the financial value received for in-kind

contributions can be reliably determined, Bomas ofKenya includes such value in the statement

of comprehensive income both as revenue and as an expense in equal and opposite amountsi

otherwise, the contribution is not recorded.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are subsequently carried at re-valued

amounts, being their fair value at the date of re-valuation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other

comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases in the carrying amount of the

same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are charged

to profit or loss in the income statement. Gains and losses on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net

carrying amount of the items, and are recognized in profit or loss in the income statement.
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Stitements (Continued)

Summary of Signilicont Accounting Policies

d) Deprecirtion and impairment of property, phnt and equipment 
,

Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress relates

mainly to the cost of ongoing but incomplete works on buildings and other civil works and

installations.

Depreciation on buildings and civil works is recognized in the income statement on a s6aighr

line basis to write down the cost ofeach asset or the re-valued amount to its residual value over

its esiimated useful life while deprecation of other classes of assets is recopized on a reducing

balance basis . The annual rates in use, as guided by National rreasury policy on assets

depreciation are:

Freehold Land

Buildings and civil works

Motor vehicles, including motor cycles

Computers and related equipment

Office equipment, furniture and fittings

Loose Tools

Pumps and Pipes

Nil

40 years or the unexpired lease period

4 years

3 years

8 years

2 years

5 years

A full year's depreciation charge is recognised both in the year ofasset purchase and in the year

of asset disposal.

Items of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the

carrying amount of an asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated

recoverable amount.

13



Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Pollcies

e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on

a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives . The estimated useful Iife and amortization

method are reviewed at the end of each reporting penod, with the effect of any changes in

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful

lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

f) Amortisation and impairment of intsngible assets

Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the

intangiblc asset. All intangible assets are reviewed annually for impairment. Where the carrying

amount of an intangible asset is assessed as greater than its estimated recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognised so that the asset is written down immediately to its estimated

recoverable amount.

O Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn renlals and./or for capital appreciation

(including property under construction for such purposes), is measured initially at cost,

including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured

at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. An investment property is

derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from

use and no future economic benefits are expected fiom the disposal. Any gain or loss arising

on derecognition ofthe property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognized.
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annurl Report and Financial Statements for the yerr ended June 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Signilicant Accounting Policies

h) Right of Use Asset

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability,

lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received

and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the entity incurs an obligation for costs to

dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the

underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions ofthe lease, a provision

is recognized and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use

asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incuned to

produce inventories. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period oflease term

and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership ofthe,nderlying asset

or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the entity expects to exercise a purchase

option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful tife of the underlying asset,

The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. The righrof-use assets are

presented as a separate Iine in the consolidated statement of financial position.

i) Fixed interest investments (bonds)

Fixed interest investments refer to investment funds placed under Central Banl of Kcnya

(CBK) Iong-term infrastructure bonds and other corporate bonds with the intention ofearning

interest income upon the bond's disposal or manrrity. Fixed interest investments are freely

traded at the Nairobi Securities Exchange. These bonds are measured at amortized cosv at

fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTocI)or at fair value through profit or

loss (FVTPL).

j) Quoted investments

Quoted investments are classified as non-current assets and comprise marketable securities

traded freely at the Nairobi Securities Exchange or other regional and international securities

exchanges. Quoted investments are stated at fair value.
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial StaterDents for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notec to the Finencial Strtements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

k) Unquoted investments

Unquoted investments stated at cost under non-current assets, and comprise equity shares held

in other Govemment owned or controlled entities that are not quoted in the Securities

Exchange.

l) Inventories

Inventories afe stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises direct

materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been

incuned in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated

using the weighted average cost method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling

price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and

distribution.

m) Trade end other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. These are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An estimate is made of

doubtful receivables based on a review ofall outstanding amoutrts at the year end. Bad debts

are written offafter all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Finsncial Stetements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

n) Taxation

i) Current itrcome tar

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the cunent period are measured at the arount

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income. Current

income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and

not in the statement of financia[ performance.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in the area where Bomas ofKenya operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

o) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between thc tax

bases of assets and lia6ilities and their carrying amounts for hnancial reporting purposcs at

the reporting date.
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial Ststements for the year ended June 30,2023

Notes to the Financial Strtements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Deferred Tax

Defened tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in respect oftaxable

temporary differences associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in

joint ventures, when the timing ofthe reversal ofthe temporary differences can be controlled and it is

probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred t.tx assets

are recognized for all deductible temporary diflerences, the carry forward ofunused tax credits and any

unused tax losses. Defened tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit

will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry fonrard of unused

tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except in respect ofdeductible temporary differences

associated with investments in controlled entities, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred

tax assets are recopized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse

in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilized.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that suffrcient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date

and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that

are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates

(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside surplus or dehcit is recognized outside surplus or

deficit. Defened tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in net assets.

Defened tax assets and defened tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable nght exists to set off

current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable

entity and the same taxation authority.
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Annual Report and Financial Strtements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifoing assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. To the extent that variable

rate borrowings are used to hnance a qualifuing.asset and are hedged in an effective cash

flow hedge of rnterest rate nslq the effective portion of the derivative is recognized in other

comprehensive income and reclassified to profit ol loss when the qualifying asset irpacts
profit or loss. To the extent that fixed rate borrowings are used to furance a qualiling asset

and are hedged in an effective fair value hedge ofinterest rate risk, the capitalized borrowing

costs reflect the hedged interest rate. Investment income eamed on the temporary investrnent

of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualif,ing assets is deducted fiom the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit

or loss in the period ln which they are incurred.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shortterm deposits on

call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

various commercial Banks at the end of th€ reporting period. For the purposes of these

financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and

advances to authorised public officers and./or institutions which were not surrendered or

accounted for at the end of the financial year.

r) Borrowings

Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value being received, net of
issue costs associated with the bonowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account

any issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance charges, including

premiums payable of settlement or redemption are accounted for on accrual basis and are
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added to the carrying amount ofthe instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the

period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction of a project is

capitalized as part ofthe cost ofthe project.

s) Trade and other pryables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortized cost, which is

measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in future in

respect ofgoods and services supplied, whether billed to the entity or not,.less any payments

made to the suppliers.

t) Retirement benefit obligations

Bomas ofKenya operates a defined contribution scheme for all full-time employees from July

l, 2022. The-scheme is administered by an in-house team and is funded by contributions from

both the company and its employees. The company also contributes to the statutory National

Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a defined contribution scheme registered under the

National Social Security Act. The company's obligation under the scheme is limited to

specific contributions legislated from time to time and is currently at Kshs. 1080 per employee

per month.

u) Provision for staffleave pay

Employees' entitlements to annual leave are recognised as they accrue at the employees. At

provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

v) Exchange rate dilferences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional curency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign currencies

during the yearlperiod are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Any

foreign exchange gains and losses resulting fiom the seftlement ofsuch transactions and fiom

the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Signillcant Accounting Policies

w) Budget informbtion

The original budget for Py 2022-2023 was approved by the Nationat Assembly on June

2022. Subsequent.revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in

accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional

appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective

approvals in order to conclude the final budget

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure

disclosed in the frnancial statements. The frnancial statements are prepared on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial

performance, whaeas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amouuts in the financial

statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation

to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A companson ofbudget and actual amounts,

prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statemcnt of
comparison ofbudget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to

amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the formats and

classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the

approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement

of comparison ofbudget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial

performance has been presented under section l7 ofthese financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues)

a) Serviceconcessionarrangements

Bomas of Kenya Limited analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters

into in determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In

particular, where a private party contnbutes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes

that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide

together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets

other than 'whole-ofJife' assets, it controts, throrigh ownership, beneficial entitlement or

otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the end ofthe anangement. Any assets

so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized,

the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or

received.

b) Comprrative figures

Where necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

c) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023.

5. Significant Judgments artd Sources of Estimstion Uncertainty

The preparation of Bomas of Kenya Limited financial statements in conformity with IFRS

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,

at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates

could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount ofthe asset or

liability affected in future periods.

State alljudgements, estimates and assumptions made: e.g
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continues)

a) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the cdrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were

prepared. However, existing circumstances and assurnptions about future developments may

change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such

changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

b) Useful lives snd residual velues

The useful lives and residual values ofassets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

o The condition ofthe asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity

o The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

o The nature ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed

o Availability offunding to replace the assets

c) Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure ofthese estimates ofprovisions is inctuded in Note 10.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is

material.

(include provisions applicable for your organisation e.g. provision for bad debts, provisions of
obsolete stocks and how management estimates these provisions)
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Notes to the Flnanciel Statements (Continues)
6. Revenue from Contrect wlth Customers

The inslitution was contracled to hosl the IEBC exercise os the National Tallying Ce*re and the bwiness starled
lricHing in the finoncial War thus the increment in most ofour revenue lines.

6 (a). IEBC Event Revenue

7. Cost of Sdes

The major dillerences in this expenditure line was due to lhe fact that the instihttion was

hosting the IEBC in terms of trainings and other preparations for the General elections.

Restaurant sales 98,432,894 19,096,449

Parties and Reception 326,81l,l l6 tu,161,573

Bar Sales 3,370,547 1,763,955.t9

Gate collection & playground 15,059,300 5,970,560

Hire of Dancers/halls 132,304,U9 13,129,185

Rent lncome 1,602,530 493,052

Sundry Income 1,013,675 r,012,710

Total sales 578594,911 145,627,4E4

Restaurant and Bar Sales 56,354,310

Parties aod Reception 262,307241

Hire of Auditorium 99,643,621

Hire of Dancers 00055

Total 418360.r72

Purchase -Main Bar 3,651,682 3,383,859

Purchases - PartieV Reception 17,153,565 20,079,334

Purchase - Main Restaurant 50,658,733 10,903,050

Total 71,469,980 34366,253
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Notes to the Finenclal Statements (Contlnued)

7(e). IEBC Dlrect Corts

E. Grents from Netionrl Government

RcsBurant and Bar Purchases 26,6U,738

Accommodation aad Hotcl Scrviccs 3928t,074
Hiring and Other Operational Expenses t60227,7s7

agesCasual W 28,826.851
Totd 2s4940,43t

Reorrent grants received 239,240,0@ 224241,000

'Capital grants realized 63,663,987 6r,374,1,s8

Totsl 302,903,9E7 28s,6r5158

(Note: For capitaudevelopment grants the amount recognbed in the statement of compreheraive
income should be the depreciatio amortisation equivalents for assets that have been acquired using
such capital/d*elopment grant as per IAS 20).

Ministry of Tourism &
Wildlife 239?40,000 63,663,987 302,903,987 302,903,9E7

Totrl 239240,000 63,663,987.02 302,903,987 302,903,987
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Notes to the FlnaDchl Strtement! (Continued)

9. Other Income (Grants from other pertners)

10. Other Gdns end Locses

IpiteCultue 7,M3,084 8,759,983

Libido Music 968,740 594,833

Totrl 8,011,t24 9154,815

Gain on provision for bad debts 1,74245r

Gain on sale ofproperty and equipment 203,924

Totd 203.924 t:t12ASt
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Notes to the Finenclel Statements (Continued)

11. AdrninistrationCosts

Staff Costs l lb) 233,493,497 209,515,026
Directors' Emoluments (1 lc) s,56t,493 14,652,t38
Motor Vehicle Ruming & 6,840,727 5,035,371
Travel & Entertainment 1,506,620 906,17s
Medical 26,430,473 t7,04\212
Dancers 1,806.620 1,783.995
Food & Accommodation 19,301,755 17,075,919
Uniforms for Staff 2296.218 680.167
Printing & Sta 3210,1l8 6.603.806
Tel & Pos e 2,450,439 1,9s437s
Cleaning & laundry t,721,0M 3,643,O89
Security Charges 1,269,000 2,735,300
Hiring Charges 165,767,t34 20,441,414
Statr 3,949.2?0 2,O54,92t
s 2,150,87 r 1,252,330

514,743 470,881
Subscriptions & Donations

Interest & Bank

2,295,109 940,058
Insurance & Licenses 205,700 4,6'13,247

Legal & professional 1,788,483 12,026,390
Audit fee 232,000 232,000
Land Rates 809,s50
Electrici & Water c 17,026,901 9.374.064

airs & Maintenance t27,858,567 3r,t42,9t8
Diverse Culnrral Pro ect 29,@3,78E t5,529,257
Bad and Doubtful Debts t,459.521
Provisions for bad & doubtful debts 70,960

reclabon e 63,663.987 61,374.258
Paid VAT 37,801,820 3,330,236
Other ses 2,038,248
Total 760,895,547 u9,903,223
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Bomar of Kenya Limlted
Annual Report end Finenclal Strtements for the year ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Flnrncirl Strtemenb (Condnued)

I lb Strff Costs

Salaries and allowances of ent employees 170,521,401 t64,904,358
of employees, Attachment and intemshipsw 44,860,233 20,390,777

salaryGeneral 3.747,379 4.944.138
Compulsory national health insurance schemes 3,209,870 2,782,4s0

national social securi schemes 4,613.760 5.8E8.12E
Terminal Benefi ts/Gratuity 6,540,855 10,625,175
Totel 233,493,4y1 209,535,026
The average number of employeer at the end of the year
wts: 2022t2023 2021n022

Permanent employees - Management 6 6
Permanent employees - Unionisable 99 103
Tempordry and contracted employees 84 82

Totd lE9 191

llc Dlrectors Emoluments

12. $glllng and Distribution Costs

Cbairman Honorarium e60,@ 9('0,000

Sitting Allowance 600,00d 4,180,@0

Travel & Subsistence 4,001,4931 9,512,138

Totrl 5,561;49x 14,5s2,138

Selling and Distribution Costs 1,124,380
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Bomes of Kenya Limited
Annuel Report end Flnancial Statementc for the yesr ended June 30, 2023

Notes to the Finsnclel Statements (Contlnued)

13. eratin ProflU os3

Staff Costs (l lb) 233,493,497 209,s3s,0%
Depreciation of PPE 63,663,987 61.374.25t
Depreciation of right of use of asset

Provision for bad and doubtful assets 70,960

Directors emoluments - fees 5,561,493 14,652,t38
Other 457,944,570 164,109,801
Auditofs remuneration - 232,000 232,000
Prior year under- sron

Loss on disposal ofPPE

Net foreip exchange loss

Interes3 receivable

Intercst le

Rent receivable
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Bomas of Kenye Limited
Annuel Report .nd Flnancial StetemenB for the yeer ended 306 June 2023

Notes to the F'lnancl.l Stetemenh (Contlnued)

t4. P Plant rnd E u ment

COST OR VALUATION 2.5'/o ot ca,i 0.7s 0.125 0.30 0.50 0.20

At ,uly lst, 2(D2 76.950.000 735.466.65E I,89r.179,331 21.49. 5 268259.tt5 2 r,894.161 24.561.191 47.02t.426 3.0t6.83 1.7 I 7

Additions 850.000 31.E2J.991 1.9253t4 34.601.175

Dspos.ls (l.655.901) (266.!O8l 0.922..109\
Transftrs

At Junc 30tt 2023 76J50.olm 7353r6.(st I "t9t.179J3 r t9r(,Jla 2993filltt zl.tt9s5a 24551.191 17.021.426 3,1l9Jr0.7&l
I!EPRECIATION

At July lsl 2022 450.076.809 t9.664,s4.200 t91.870.719 I t,024,sr 24.499.328 42,418,tt9 7,rt.614.420

Charfl. for lhc yr6r otr Drofit & loss 47.219.4E3 458.685.900 t3247.108 1.7r8.651 30.93r 90t.521 63.663.9t7

Ilooairrot loes

EliminrtioD oo disDosd (l.65J.900) (2ffi.M\ 0.v22.t09\
At ,unc 30th" 2@3 497.356292 I t.,{67.430 20,6.852.078 t9.762.69a 24.530260 43387.340 810.356.09E

I{ET BOOK VALUE AT JUNE 2023 76950.out 73531665t r393J23.039 l376.ta 929{..5;A {096J67 30J3r 3.63,a.0t5 2j0!r.r 5a.5t2

I

a
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Bomrr of Kenye Limited
Annurl Report end Finenciel Stetements for the year eDded 306 Jlune 2023

I

Notes To The Finrtrcl.l Strtements (Condnued)

P Phnt and ment Continued

COST OR VALUATION 2.5Y. on cast o.25 0.125 0.30 0.50 0.20
AT July I . 202 I 76950.000 663.3233t9 I,t91.r79.331 21.499.t15 265.t .1t4 2 t,4q),631 24.561.19r 47,Uzt.426 3.0t tlt9.t26
Additions 72.t43.339 3.055.002 ,103,550 75.61l.t9l

Traosf.rs

AT Junc 30tb 2012 7695t1.m0 73!.466.55t lt9l.l?933r 2l.4r.8rs 25u59.115 21J94.ltl 2456r,19I 17.021426 I 1ts
IIEPf,ECIATION

AIJEry r,2021 q2;197 325 19.052.921 t83J43.8?4 r6J65.409 24,437.46 41343.t67 687 24o.t62
Cbrlgc for thc yaaa-oo Drofi & lo&t 47 219-4t3 6tt.724 10.626.905 1.658-63 r 61.662 I,135,552 61.37425A

lors

Eliminatioo oo disposd

At JuDc 30th. 2022 450,076.809 t9.@.&4 193.8?0.779 r 8.024.041 24.499.328 42.478-819 748.6t4.420
NET B(X)K VALI'E AT JT'NE 2022 75J50,000 735.t66J5t l./ta l.r 02523 lJ35,t7t 743tu35 3-t70.1lo 5t,6.2 a51t,st 2J3&217-295

3l



t

Bomes of Kenya Limited
Adnud Report and Flnanciel Strtemen8 for the year ended 306 June 2023

Notes To The Finrnclcl Strtements (Condnued)

Valuetlon

NorE. The revaluation of the assets was done in August 1996 By Gatheru Irungu Mugo co ltd. The

total value of the assets was Kshs 194,020,600 :-(while the value of Fixed assets was Ksh s. zg,lgl,433
as at 30/6/1996) as below: -

WORX IN PROGRESS

This referc to the amount speDt in putting up the Perimeter wall, NAICEC hoject, the cultural /

Conference cente within the organization and rehabilitation ofthe auditorium.

14 (b) Property, Plent end Equipment rt Cost

If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts

would be as follows:

l. Land 76,950,000.00
2. Buildings and site works 109,185,000.00
3. Fumituc and equipmcnt 5,085,600.00
4. Motor vehicles 2,800,000.00

Work in progress analysis

Balance broucht forward 735,466,658 663,323,319
Additions for the year 850,000 72,143,339
Total balance carried forward 736,316,658 735,466,658

Land 76,950,000 76,950,000

),393,823,039Buildings 1,891,179,331 497,356,292

Motor Vehicles Including Moor Cycles 19,843,914 18,467,430 t,376,484

Computer and Related Equipment 23,819,5& 19,762,698 4,056,867

Office Equipment, Furniture and Fittings 299,818,699 206,852,078 92,966,621

Pumps and Pipes 47,021,426 43,387,340 3,634,085

Loose Tools 24,56r,19t 24,530,260 30,931

Work in Progress 736,316,658736,316,658

3,119,510,7E3 E10J56,09E 2309,rs4,682
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Plnancial Statements for the year ended 306 Juue 2023

Notes To The Flnrncial Strtements (Contlnued)

Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that .ue fully depreciated:

15. Inventories

16. Trade and Other Recelvables

Buildings and Civil Works 1,891,179,331 47,279,483
Motor Vehicles, lncluding Motor Cycles 19,843,914 4s&686
Computer and Related Equipment 21,8t9,564 1,738,657
Office t, Fumiture and Fittines 299.818.699 13.247.708
PumFs and Pipes 47,02t,426 908,521
Loose Tools 24,56t,191 30931

2)06,244,125 63,6639E7

Finished Goods 2,919,436 3,886,732
Totd 2919,436 3,EK,732

Trade Receivables (Note 16 (a) 15,304,806 14,595,206

Deposits and prcpayments I,183,500 1,183,500
Vat recoverable

Staff receivables (Note 16 (c) 77 t,749 I,00s,434
Other receivables 55,137,122 51,897,978
Gross Trade and Other Receivables 72397,177 6E,6t2,110
Provision for Bad And Doubtful Receivable (1,530,481) (l,4se,521)
Net Trede and Other Receivables 70,866,696 67,222,598
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annud Report and Finrncial Ststemenb for the year ended 306 June 2023

Notes to the Flnencial Ststement! (Confinued)

l6 I Trede Recelvrbles

Debtors- long outstandhg

Trade Debtors 15,3M,806 14,595,206

Staff Debtors 771,749 1.005,434

Deposits Paid 1,183,500 1,183,500

Little Theatre & Ushanga Kenya Receivables 55,137,122 51,897,978

Totd 72397,177 5t,6t2,llt
Provision for bad & Doubtful Debts- r 12,014.00

-( l0% of trade debtors) (1,530,481) (r,4s9,s21)
-(100% of long outstanding debtors over 10 years)

Provision for ex- staff debtors (l12,014)

Provision for leave paid

Totrl 70,t66,696 67222Fn
Provislon for bad & Doubtful Debts

Opening balance 1,459,521 1,20t,972

Closing balance 1,530,481 r,459,52t

Gain / Loss on Provisions (70960) t,742ASt

Gross trade receivables 15,3M,806 14,595,206

(1,530,481) (t,459,521)Provision for doubtful receivables

13,774,325 13,r35,6E5

At June 30, the ageing analysis of the gross nade
receivables was as follows:

Less than 30 days 3,796,91r

Berween 30 and 60 days 77,740

2,87 |Between 6l and 90 days 2,397,400

Between 91 and 120 days 54,400 1,036,840

13,555,495Over 120 days 8,978,3ss

l5JM,E06 14,s95206
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financial StatemenB for the year ended 30t June 2023

Notes to the Flnancial Statements (Continued)

l6 Reconciliation of Im

l6 SteIf Receivebles

ent Allowance for Trade Receivables

c

a

l6 d Rcconciliation of Im rment Allowence for Steff Receivebles

At the beginning of the year 14,595,206 32,019,722

Additional provisions during the year 1,823,200 1,879,766

Recovered during the year (l,l13,600) (t9,304,282)

Written off during the year

At the end ofthe year 15,304,806 r4,595,206

Gross staff loans and advances 77t,749 1,005,434
Provision for impairment loss

77r,749 r,005,434

Amounts due within one year 771,749 r,005,43a

Amounts due after one year

At the beginning ofthe year 1,005,434 256,000

Additional provisions during the year t,823,200 t,629,700

Recovered during the year (2,0s6,88s) (880,266)

Written off during the year

At the end of the year 771,749 1,005,434
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Flnrncicl Ststements for the year ended 306 June 2023

Notec To The Finrnchl Strtements (Continued)

17. Brnk rnd Crsh Belances

The bull ofrte cash at funkwqs heU at the Keayo C.ommercial Banlc, the entity's moin barkers

Detalled enelysls of the cesh and cash equivalentg

Cash at bank - Current A/c No (l 108986668) 2,724 2,683,r54
Cash in bank - Cunent A"/c No (l 108985580) E4.519.004 53.871.873

M-Pesa - Accormt 261,469 426,138

Cash in hand 78,260 11,050

Cash Float 0

Total u,86t,4s1 s69922rs

a) Current rccount
Kenya Commercial bank l 108986668 2,724 2,683,154

Kenya Commercial bank l 108985580 84,519.004 53.871.873

Sub- total u,521,128 56,555,027

b) On - cdl deposlts
Kenya Commercial bank

Sub- totll

c) Fired deporlt! rccornt
Kenya Commercial bank

Sub- totd

d) Stdf cer lorn/ mortgaqe
Kenya Commercial bank

Sub- total

e) Othen(speclfy)
Cash Float

11,050Cash in hand 78,260
M pesa 261,469 426,t38
Sub- totel 339,729 437,18t
Grend totrl E4.E61.457 s6,yr22t5
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Bomrs of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Financirt Statements for the year ended 30e June 2023

Noter To The Financlal Stetements (Contlnued)

18. Ordin Share Ca ital

19, RevaluationReserve

The revaluation resewe relates to the revaluation of certain items of property, plant md
equipment. As indicated in tbe statement of changes in Equity, this is stated after transfer of
excess depreciation net of related deferred tax to retained eamings. Revaluation suryrluses ae
not disfibutable.

20. Feir Value Adjustment Reserve

The fair value adjustsnent reserve arises on the revaluation ofavailable-for-sale financial assets,

principally the marketable securities. when a financial asset is sold, the portion of the reserve

that relates to that asset is reduced from the fair value adjustrnent reserve and is recognised in

profit or loss. Where a financial asset is impaired, the portion of the reserve that relates to that

asset is recognised in profit or loss.

21, Retalned Earnlngs

The retained eamings represent amounts available for distribution to the Bomas of Kenya Ltd

shareholders. Undistributed retained earnings are utilised to finance the Bomas of Kenya Ltd

business activities.

Authorized:

254,000 Ordinary shares ofKShs. 20 par value each 5,080,000 5,0E0,000

Issued end fully paid:

254,000 Ordinary shares ofKShs. 20 par value each 5,080,000 5,0t0,000

Balance brought forward 164,829,167 164,829,167

Less:depreciation s lus for the year

Revaluation surplus (valuation done in 1996)

Balance carried forward 1u.829.167 164-829.167
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Bomes of Kenya Limited
Annual Report and Flnancial Strtements for the year ended 306 June 2023

Notes to the Flnrncirl Strtenents (Contlnued)
Retained eernln gs (contlnued)

22. Defcrrrd C Grcnt

23. Trede end Other P bles

24. Retlrement Beneflt Obllgatlonr
Bomas of Kenya Ltd contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is a

defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. Bomas ofKenya Ltd's

obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time and is

curently at KShs.1,080 per employee per month. Other than NSSF Bomas of Keuya Ltd also has a

defined contribution scheme operated by Kenindia Pension Fund. Employees conkibute 7 .5%o whlle

employers contribute 15% ofbasic salary. Employer contributions are recognized as expenses in the

statement of furancial performance within the period they are incurred.

Balance brought forward 147,771,38s 189,700,853

Net Surplus / Dehcit for the year 56,224,739 (41,929,468)

Total 203,y)6,125 147,77t385
Revaluation Reserve(amortization)

Revaluation surplus (valuation done in 1996)

Belence crrried forwerd 203.996.t25 147.7713t5
Balence crrrled forward 203.996.t25 147.77t3t5

Balance for the yeatr 2022/2023 2,0/.l,406,876 r,972,4M,616

Capital Grant for the year 150,000,0u)

Deferrcd Grant fot the yeat 2022/2O23 63,663,987 6t,374,258

Adjustnent for Capital grant (Little Theatre) t9,62f ,482
Balance Carried Forward t271Jt2382 z,Ml,lp6frIo

Trade Creditors 14,719,913 53,627,133

RetentioD/Contract monies 20,716,624 23,955.768
Employee payables s.824.670 1.779.936

Other Payables t4,892,882 27,868,574
Totrl Payeble 1r6.154.0m 107231,4t1

,rl'r,
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Bomes of Kenya Limited
Annual Repoit and Finencial Statements for the yeer ended 306 June 2023

Notec to the Financial Statements (Continued)

25. Notec to the Statement of Cesh Flows

(a) Reconcllletion of operating profit/Qoss) to
crsh ted used in tions
Profit or loss before tax s6,224,739 (41,929,468)

lahon 63,663,987 61,374,258
Capital Grans Realized (63,663,987) (6t,374,258)
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (203,924)
Taxation Paid

fitl before w ital 56,020,815 (41,929,468)

Increase decrcase in inventories 967,297 (2,309.089)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (3,6,14,098) ts,370,0&
lncrease.(decrease) in trade and other payables 8.922.679 27.983.949

Cash tlonsfrom/ used in 62,266,693 (884,543)

Belence rt DIII of the
Recei ts during the year

Repayments during the year

Bdlnce rt end of the yeer

Ana of cesh and crsh uivalentsc

Short term slts

Cash at bank 84,783,t97 56,981,165
Cash in hand 78,260 I 1,050

Balance at end ofthe year u,E61,457 s6,992,215
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Bomes of Kcnye Limited
Annuel Report end llntncirl StrtcEcnts for the yerr endcd 306 June 2023

Notes To Thc Finrnclel Strtcmcnts (Condnued)

26. Teretlon

Thc company has bcen makrng losses over the years and thcrcforc did not providc for tax in the

financial statcmcnts. During thc financral year cndcd 30 June 2023, thc company had a profit of
Kslls. 56,224,739. A substantial amount of incomc during thc year wzrs grants from the

Govemmcrrt. No provrsion for tax was therefore made.

27. Incorporetion

lpmas sf Kgayx Ltd is incorporated in Kcnya undcr thc Kcnyan Compan.res Act and is domicilcd

in Kcnya.

2E. Evcntr eftcr thc Rcportlng Period

Thcrc wcrc no material adjusting and non- adjusting events aftcr thc rcporting period.

29. Currcncy

The financial statcmcnts are presented lD Kenya Shillings (Kshs)
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Bomar of Kenya Llmlted
Annuel Report and Financial Statements for the yeer ended 306 June 20LI

20. Appendlces

Appendix 1: Implementation stetus of Auditorceneral prior yerr recommendatlons

The following is tbe summary ofissues raised by the external auditor, and managanent comments that were provided to the auditor.

CPAIYIX N GILWA
ACCOI,]NTING OTTICER
AG. GE
DATE:

NEFAp MAr{46Bpy 6HrEF E)GCUTwE OTT,ICER

ts \u f lar+1

,

I Revaluation of
Propcrty, Plant and

Equipment

Ministy of Tourism & Wildlife is
working on a model to carry out
valuation of State Corporation
utrder it

Not Resolved One year

2 Trade and Other
Receivables

Management has requested the
Board of Directors to get approval
from the National Treasury to
write offthe long outstanding
debts.

Not Resolved One year

3

I I

Long Outstanding
Trade Payables

Management embarked on clearing
the long outstanding payables and

this is an ongoing exercise.

Not Resolved One year
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Bomer of Kenya Limited
Annurl Report rnd Financial Statements for the year ended 306 Junc 2023

Appendir II: Projects implemented by Bomec of Kenya Limited

Projects

Projects imflemented by the State Corporatiou/ SAGA Funded by development parhers.

Appendir III: Status of Projects Complefion

l. Sample Bar Kenya lctr,l1112022 HEVA Fund LLP 2 years 22,811,025 YES YES

a

I Sample Bar Kenya 22,Ett,025 15,800,343 690/o 7,043,084 7 040 350 Crrants

42
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Bomrs of Keryr Llmtted
Annuel Report eud Financlel Stetements for the yeer ended 306 June 2023

A TV: T &en Ottcr Government Enddes

Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife 9t22/2022 Recurrent t9,936,67 19,936,667 19,936,667
Minisry of Tourism and Wildlife 912312022 Recurrcnt 19,936,667 19,936,667 19,936,667
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife t1l14t?022 Recurrcnt 19,936,67 19,936,667 19,936,667
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife taa2022 Recurrent 39,873.334 39,873,334 39,873.334
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife l124/2023 Recunent 19,936,667 t9,936,667 19,936,667
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife 212/2023 Recurrent 19,936,667 t9,936,667 19,936,667
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife 3n/2023 Recurrent 19,936,67 19,936,667 19,936,667
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife 4t11t2023 Recurrent 19,936,665 19,936,665 19,936,665
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife slt0t2023 Recurrent t9,936,667 19,936,667 19,936,667
Ministry of Tourism and Wildlife 5^5/2023 Recurrent 19,936,667 19,936,67 19,936,667
Minisky of Tourism and Wildlife 5n5t2023 Recurrent t9,936,666 19,936,666 19,936,666
Tot!l 239,240,000 239?240,000

a
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Bomas of Kenya Limited
Annual Report end Financlal Statements for the yeer ended 30t June 2023

Appendir V- Inter-Entity Conlirmrtion Letter
Bomas of a Ltd wishes to confirm the arnouns disbursed to as at 306 June 2023 as indicated in the table below.

I
Reference
Number Drte Disbursed Recurrent

(A)

Development

(B)

Inter-
Minlsterlel

(c) (D)<A+B+C)

Totrl

Amount Recelved
by Bomrs of

Kenya (Kshr) er
et 30th June 2023

(E) (FHI).E)

Dlfferences
(Kshs)

I 9122/2022 t9.936.667 19.936.667 t9,936,667
2 9t23/2022 t9.936.66'l 19.936.667 t9,936,667
J tvt4l2022 t9.936.667 19,936,667 19,936,667
4 1212t2022 39,873,3t4 39.873.334 39.873.334
5 U24t2021 19,936,667 19,936.667 19.936.667
6 2/2t2023 19,936,667 19.916.667 19.936.667
7 3t7t2023 19,936,667 19.936.67 19.936.667
8 411U2023 19,936,66s 19.936.665 19.936.665
9 5ltot2023 19,936,667 t9.936.667 19.936.667

l0 5/15t2023 t9.936.667 t9,936,667 t9,936,667
l1 5115/2023 19.936.666 19,936,66 19.936,666

Totel 239,240,000 239240.000 239J40.000

In confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated
Head of Accountants deprrtment of beneliciary entity:"a
x"..1*trL......1]...Kg(.,.(. sieo ...&."..-A* \pDete....\5.

,
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